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DESIGN/DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMISSION 

DESIGN REVIEW DISTRICT 
HISTORIC AGENDA 

EVALUATION SHEET 
Case # 1 

 
 
ADDRESS:   1608 Main Street (1606 Main Street on tax record) 
 
APPLICANT:   Tom Prioreschi, owner 
 
TAX MAP REFERENCE:  TMS#09014-04-14  

 
USE OF PROPERTY:  Commercial 
 
REVIEW  DISTRICT:  Pending Individual Landmark, City Center Design/Development 

District 
 
NATURE OF REQUEST:   Request recommendation for Group III Individual Landmark 
 
FINDINGS/COMMENTS:   
This is a c.1870 building that has had a number of façade changes over the years.  Recent selective 
material removal on the upper story has revealed an earlier façade that likely dates to the 1930s, 
with updates from 1941 on the first floor.  The current expected renovation will return the building 
to its 1941 appearance, which included the older upper story and the new storefront. New windows 
will be installed on the upper story, and those and any other façade work will need to comply with 
the ordinance for landmark buildings. 
 
PERTINENT SECTIONS FROM CITY ORDINANCE 
Section 17-691(d) of the Columbia City Ordinance outlines the criteria for designation as a Group III Landmark.  
“Group III consists of structures or sites which round out and extend the material-visual history of Columbia when 
added to Groups I and II; they evidence one or more of the following criteria for selection:  
(1) The site of events, homes of men, etc., that are interesting locally. 
(2) Somewhat unusual characteristics in architectural design. 
(3) Belonging to a family or "genera" of buildings recognized locally. 
(4) A mediocre example of a style or type of building which is becoming, or in danger of becoming, extinct locally.  
(5) Evidencing one or more of the criteria for Group II, but too decrepit or too destructively modified to constitute a 
prime historic document.  
 
If possible, these should be preserved by "adaptive use," although not necessarily on their original sites. Generally, 
preservation of interiors is not of great importance and controlled remodeling of exteriors is in order.” 
 
The building at 1608 Main Street meets criteria (2) and (4) in that it has somewhat unusual 
characteristics in architectural design as it executes Art Deco motifs in a speckled brick facade with 
cast stone inserts and a marble and chrome first story, and it is a mediocre example of a nineteenth-
century commercial building that is in danger of becoming extinct locally. Art Deco typically 
explored smooth materials to maintain a streamlined appearance; the use of a traditional brick in 
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this design is somewhat unusual, as is the color of the brick itself, which is cream tone that keeps in 
the palette of the popular terra cotta at the time. As the increased development on Main Street 
escalates, there is a danger that the smaller buildings of our historic commercial corridor being 
demolished for new development.  While this building is not a perfect example of its type, its 
altered facades are part of the ongoing story of Main Street to keep up with architectural trends and 
modernize for new customers, and this is evidence that the trend has been going on for well over a 
century.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff finds that the building meets several from Section 17-691(d) of the Columbia City Ordinance 
for a Group III Landmark. 
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Top: Image from 2012 

Above: c. 1910s postcard 

 

Top Right: c. 1945 image 

 

Middle Right: Current image after marble 

removed from upper story 

 

Bottom Right: Current storefront 

 

 



INFORMATION PROVIDED BY APPLICANT 



1508 Main St History

First built in t872, this two story building is one of the oldest remaining buildings on Main Street. lt
was thought to be pretty non-descript until the owners recently took off the 3 X 3 white marble
panels on the upper fagade exposing some very interesting brick details which will be repaired and
restored. Before the marble panels were removed, the current fagade featured a modified recessed
storefront with a terrazzo floor entryway and the marble paneled slipcoven fagade. Evidence indicates
that the building has been altered several times over the years.

The earliest known picture that we have is the 1912 to 1914 photo included herein which shows that
it had a small cornice and three tall windows that seem to duplicate the pattern of the red brick infill
that exists now under the white marble panels that were recently removed. Our belief is that 1912-
1914 photo memorializes the original condition of the 1872 fagade.

So we believe that the exposed brick fagade, which will be brought to life again, was placed there
sometime after L927 and maybe as late as sometime after 1932. The photo of the adjacent Berry's
larger 3 story building shows a bit of 1608 Main St building on the left hand corner of the photo. This
photo which had to be taken after 1927 as Bon Marche occupied the building from L927 to 1932 and it
continued to show the same long windows and the same original cornice.

Just prior to Berry's expanding into this building the property comprised of two street addresses, 1506
and 1608 Main St. in 1929 Berry's Slipper Shop began operating in the 1608 storefront. The 1606
storefront was renovated in 1932 and Malloy's Parlor, a soda and ice cream shop opened there that
year. f n L94t Berry's annexed the 1606 address in order to expand their floor space and at that time
made the first of several alterations that they performed. The first photo after Berry's moved in in
1941 shows the three windows still exist but they are considerably less tall than the original three
windows. This photo also shows the brick details which we will preserve. We believe that when
Berry's was expanding into the Building and modifying it that the current first floor storefront
windows and lower fagade marble trim were also added.

Sometime around 1948 Berry's covered the upper part of the fagade with matching brick marble
panels. The 1948 photo shows the second addition of the white marble.

So what we plan on doing now is to completely restore the very interesting brick front and add three
windows duplicating the windows that were there prior to 1941 and bringing back that Lristoric
appearance. We will also add a new plain black simple awning to the current tenant's storefront.

Inside on the second floor seven new apartments will be added to the 1508 Main St building. All
these apartments will become part of the "Berry's Apartment project as the current lobby at t2l7
Taylor St, the current elevator, the current hallways and the current two stairways in the Berry's
building will all serve both buildings. This will enable the entire vacant second floor to be put into
service with 100% yield and no additional common area.



Additional Materials List

Tax Map

Richland County Tax lnformation

Survey

t9t2-tgL4 Picture

L927-1932 Picture

Newspaper Articles 1941

1941 Picture

1948 Picture

Current pictures of fagade and storefront (4)

Architects Front Elevation of work to be completed

Pictures with computer simulation of what awning will look like
marble before removal (2)

Architects second floor apartment floor plate including seven

photo of slipcover of upper
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Metadata
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Seck Shtrg and The (lot&on Shop

t'bxey, Russell

cira L948

Po$t-!'/ar America \L546 - 79M)

ff,ussell f,iaxey Photograph CcJlection

Busifiess anc lffdustry

Commerical buildings -- Sooth Carolna -- Colurilbja.
Columbia (-9,C.)

1600 Main, Columbia, 5.C

Black and whife photographic negativei L60t) f4atn, C,olumbla, 5.e

Enqlish

Russell Maxey Photograph golleetlon

hfrp.//www.rrcblandlibrcry ,Eatn/tnforn/russell-maxcy-phetrgfaph.c!llecFgn

Bicbland Library, Colurnbia, S,C.

Digital image copyright 20.13, Richland Library All nghls reserved, FoT ntore lnforrnaLron contact Rrchland Library, Columbia, SC 2920I
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rnage/Jp.eg

600ppi, 24-brt depth color, Epson Expression 10000 XL scanrer witr Ltrpson SCAN scanning soFtware, Archival Inaster iile is a -llFF
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